
 

 

 
 

Board Meeting 
 

Thursday, September 12, 2024   8:00 am 
Region 1 Planning Council  

127 N Wyman St, Ste 100, Rockford, IL 61101 
 

Agenda 
 

Members: Boone County, Chicago Rockford International Airport, City of Belvidere, City of Freeport, City of Loves 
Park, City of Rochelle, City of Rockford, City of South Beloit, ComEd, Four Rivers Sanitation Authority, Greater 
Freeport Partnership, Growth Dimensions, Greater Rockford Growth Partnership, Highland Community College, 
McHenry County, Nicor, Northern Illinois University – Rockford, North Park Water, Northwestern Building Trades, 
Rockford Park District, Rochelle Economic Development, Rockford Mass Transit District, Rock Valley College, 
Stephenson County, Village of Cherry Valley, Village of Machesney Park, Village of Poplar Grove, Winnebago 
County, The Workforce Connection 
 

1. Call to Order 
2. Roll Call 
3. Public Comment 
4. Approval of May 14, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
5. PRESENTATION: Tim Swanson, inherent l3c 

Modular Housing 
6. Fiscal Year-End Financial Report 
7. Executive Director’s Report 
8. Other Business 

a. Nominations for new Community Advisory Forum (CAF) members – Chelsey Glatz, 
Martesha Brown 

9. Adjournment 
 

 
 

Opportunities for public comment will be provided at all meetings. Persons who require special accommodations 
under the Americans with Disabilities Act or persons who require translation services (free of charge) should 

contact the Region 1 Planning Council at 815-319-4180 at least two working days before the need for such services 
or accommodations. 

 
Next Meeting: Thursday, November 14, 2024    8:00 am 



 

1 
 

Region 1 Planning Council Board 
 

Meeting Minutes 
Tuesday, May 14, 2024 

127 N Wyman St, Ste 100, Rockford, IL 61101 
 

1. Call to Order 
With a quorum present, the meeting was called to order by Mayor Jury at 8:01 am. 
 

2. Roll Call 
A quorum was present, including: 

 Boone County x McHenry County 
x Chicago Rockford Int'l Airport (8:03)  McHenry Economic Development Association 
x City of Belvidere    Nicor / Southern Co 
 City of Freeport  Northern Illinois University 
x City of Loves Park  Northwestern Illinois Building Trades 
 City of Rochelle  North Park Public Water District 
x City of Rockford  Rochelle Economic Development Corporation 
x City of South Beloit x Rockford Mass Transit District 
x ComEd (8:05) x Rockford Park District 
x Four Rivers Sanitation Authority x Rock Valley College 
x Greater Freeport Partnership x Stephenson County 
 Greater Rockford Chamber of Commerce x Village of Cherry Valley 
x Growth Dimensions x Village of Machesney Park 
x Highland Community College x Village of Roscoe 
 McHenry Community College x Winnebago County 
 Martesha Brown x The Workforce Connection   

 
3. Public Comment 

There were none present who wished to address the Board. 
 

4. PRESENTATION: State and Region Economic Development Partnership – Lisa Clemmons Stott, Electric Mobility 
and Innovation Director of the Illinois Department of Commerce & Economic Opportunity (IL DCEO) 
Lisa Clemmons Stott, Electric Mobility and Innovation Director of IL DCEO presented on IL DCEO’s five-year 
strategic plan and areas where they are looking to invest. This strategic plan should be introduced to the Illinois 
legislature by July 1. There has been a lot of state money invested in manufacturers and infrastructure projects. 
Future strategies will continue this focus and maximize job readiness in the state’s workforce. Strategies for the 
next five years include site readiness, customized job training, strengthening and leveraging economic 
development partnerships, and building on incentives. Identified growth industries are next generation 
agriculture and food manufacture, life science and biology, next generation computing, clean energy, and 
advanced manufacturing.  
 



 
 

5. Consent Agenda 
a. Approval of February 8, 2024 Board Meeting Minutes 
Motion by Winnebago County, seconded by Four Rivers, to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Motion approved unanimously by voice vote. 
 

6. Budget Adoption for FY 2025 
Mr. Dunn gave an overview of the proposed Region 1 Joint Planning Commission budget for FY 2025. 

a. RESOLUTION 2024-02: Adoption of Budget for Fiscal Year 2025 
Motion by Machesney Park, seconded by Winnebago County, to approve the Resolution. 
Motion approved unanimously by voice vote. 
 

7. Election of Officers for FY 2025 
A motion was made by Four Rivers and seconded by Winnebago County to re-appoint Mayor Jury as Board Chair. 
A motion was made by Winnebago County and seconded by City of Loves Park to re-appoint Tim Hanson as Board 
Vice-Chair. 

a. RESOLUTION 2024-03: Approval of Officers for Region 1 Joint Planning Commission 
Motion by Machesney Park, seconded by Winnebago County, to approve the Resolution. 
Motion approved unanimously by voice vote. 
 

8. Executive Director’s Report 
Mr. Dunn gave a report on 3rd quarter financials. Mr. Dunn stated that he was proud of the impact made across 
four regional counties in 2024. That impact includes land use technical assistance and a RISE grant award for 
Marengo (McHenry County); infrastructure work to support economic development in Boone County and adding 
Boone County to the Trustee Land Auction; various program plan updates for Winnebago County; and Land Bank, 
brownfield, and flood grant application work for Stephenson County. 
 

9. Trustee/Land Bank Update – Eric Setter 
Mr. Setter reported that the Land Bank continues to acquire properties regularly. He mentioned that the 
nationwide competitive housing market presents new challenges with acquiring Land Bank properties. Mr. Setter 
attended the Habitat for Humanity groundbreaking for their 2024 build season. The Land Bank provided property 
for these builds, which aligns with the board’s directive to support regional housing improvement.  He just 
completed a successful Trustee Auction in April for Winnebago and Boone Counties.  There were 476 parcels sold 
in Winnebago County and 69 in Boone County for just over $1 million made in bids. Closing should be complete 
by June 7.  
 

10. Mental Health Programming Update – Jason Holcomb 
Mr. Holcomb reported that the Winnebago County Community Mental Health Board recorded administrative 
costs of under 5% and over 5000 unique individuals per quarter were served. The WCCMHB just awarded $60 
million over three years in the latest round of funding to 38 programs. New this year was Accelerator funding. This 
one-time funding is intended to improve system capacity in perpetuity. Seven awards were made, totaling $10 
million.  
 

11. MPO Update – Sydney Turner 
Ms. Turner gave an update on smaller MPO projects, many of which are in partnership with organizations 
represented on the board. Those projects included RECUPERAT, EPA Section 319 grant, Winnebago County Hazard 
Mitigation Plan update, City of Oregon sustainability plan, Safe Streets 4 All, and Bus Rapid Transit.  



 
 

 
12. Other Business 

Chairman Jury discussed the grocery tax and a proposed plan to reinstate. The statewide tax expires in January 
2026, with each municipality to vote it back in by October 2025. For those who vote to reinstate, the tax revenue 
will begin being collected again in January 2026, with the state collecting 1.5%. Regionally, we will put together a 
plan for all agreeing municipalities to vote as a region to reinstate. No one present was aware of any municipalities 
who would not participate in this regional collaboration. This planning is expected to begin in August. Contact 
Isaac Guerrero or Michael Dunn with any questions.  
 

13. Adjournment 
Motion by Machesney Park, seconded by Winnebago County, to adjourn.  
Motion approved unanimously by voice vote. 
Meeting adjourned at 9:00 am. 
 

Meeting minutes prepared by: Amy Salamon 
Minutes approved by action of the Board: _____________ 



FY24 Unaudited Results 7/31/24 GENERAL MPO LAND BANK NORTHCOG WINGIS TOTAL FY2024 Budget Total to Budget

Income

   Federal Revenue 464,411$                                                    1,119,142$                         -$                             -$                           -$                             1,583,552.69$                      2,362,907.79$             67%

   State of Illinois Revenue 646,094$                                                    300,552$                            160,482$                     -$                           -$                             1,107,127.82$                      859,335.71$                129%

   Annual Membership Revenue 338,153$                                                    -$                                    -$                             50,000$                     326,019$                     714,171.53$                         812,754.22$                88%

   Fee for Service Revenue 1,160,508.31$                                            -$                                    -$                             -$                           5,425.18$                    1,165,933.49$                      1,089,251.82$             107%

   Other Income 38,431.13$                                                 44,262.50$                         436,858.84$                12,250.00$                 64,961.64$                  596,764.11$                         359,500.00$                166%

R1 Subsidy to COG in lieu of Membership Fee (16,768)$                                                     16,768$                     -$                                     -$                             

   Indirect Cost Transfer to General Fund 223,383.62$                                               -$                                    -$                             -$                           -$                             223,383.62$                         205,570.68$                109%

Total Income 2,854,212$                              1,463,956$             597,341$          79,018$           396,406$          5,390,933.26$         5,689,320.22$   95%

Expenses

         Direct Personnel (Salary & Wages) 1,072,783$                                                 642,639$                            102,074$                     47,405$                     180,845$                     2,045,745.48$                      2,165,826.01$             94%

         Direct Fringe Benefits 536,828$                                                    267,476$                            59,812$                       19,441$                     88,224$                       971,780.67$                         918,970.71$                106%

         Accrued Paid Time Off Expense -$                                                            -$                                    -$                             -$                           -$                             -$                                     176,800.00$                0%

    Total Personnel Costs 1,609,611$                                                 910,115$                            161,886$                     66,846$                     269,069$                     3,017,526.15$                      3,261,596.72$             93%
         Direct Travel Expenses 24,354$                                                      14,994$                              1,025$                         139$                          6,561$                         47,073.58$                           47,132.44$                  100%

         Direct Supplies 9,442$                                                        6,338$                                949$                            727$                          712$                            18,168.91$                           22,815.08$                  80%

         Direct Equipment 7,859$                                                        3,419$                                -$                             -$                           -$                             11,278.04$                           20,652.78$                  55%

         Direct Contractual Services & Subawards 910,128$                                                    348,904$                            80,750$                       9,523$                       74,457$                       1,423,761.10$                      1,752,322.39$             81%

         Direct Professional Services 111,193$                                                    36,326$                              133,717$                     430$                          14,327$                       295,991.80$                         200,192.81$                148%

         Direct Occupancy 34,780$                                                      57,265$                              4,752$                         1,086$                       14,527$                       112,410.17$                         125,098.00$                90%

         Direct Telecommunications -$                                                            -$                                    -$                             -$                           432$                            432.12$                                435.00$                       99%

         Direct Professional Development 4,725$                                                        9,418$                                1,506$                         102$                          528$                            16,279.39$                           21,499.52$                  76%

         Direct Miscellaneous Costs 1,811$                                                        273$                                   362$                            165$                          158$                            2,768.36$                             30,418.54$                  9%

      Total Direct Expenses 1,104,293$                                                 476,937$                            223,060$                     12,172$                     111,702$                     1,928,163.47$                      2,220,566.56$             87%
   All Personnel & Direct Costs 2,713,904$                                          1,387,052$                     384,946$                 79,018$                  380,770$                 4,945,689.62$                 5,482,163.28$         90%

      Indirect Miscellaneous Costs -$                                     -$                             

      Indirect Cost Transfer to General Fund 87,037$                                                      113,171$                            23,176$                       223,383.62$                         205,570.68$                109%

      Interest Paid 2,289$                                                        2,288.82$                             1,585.78$                    144%

   Total Indirect Expenses 89,326$                                               113,171$                        23,176$                   -$                       -$                         225,672.44$                    207,156.46$            109%

Total Expenses 2,803,229$                              1,500,223$             408,122$          79,018$           380,770$          5,171,362.06$         5,689,319.74$   91%

Net Operating Income 50,982.88$                              (36,266.79)$            189,219.55$      -$                 15,635.56$        219,571.20$            0.48$                 

Net Income 50,982.88$                          (36,266.79)$         189,219.55$   -$               15,635.56$     219,571.20$         0.48$              
 *Past Fiscal year 

expenses and In-Kind 

Match 


	2024_5_14 Board Meeting Minutes.pdf
	2024_9_12 Meeting Packet.pdf
	2024_9_12 Board Agenda.pdf
	2024_5_14 Board Meeting Minutes.pdf
	FY24 Final Results.pdf


